
City of Monticello, Iowa 
www.ci.monticello.ia.us 

Posted on December 15, 2022 at 5:00 p.m. 
Monticello City Council Meeting December 19, 2022 @ 6:00 p.m.  

Monticello Renaissance Center, 220 E. 1st Street, Monticello, Iowa 
 
Mayor:  Dave Goedken  Staff:  
City Council:    City Administrator:       Russell Farnum 
At Large: Wayne Peach  City Clerk/Treas.:      Sally Hinrichsen 
At Large: Brenda Hanken  Police Chief:       Britt Smith 
Ward #1: Scott Brighton  City Engineer:       Patrick Schwickerath 
Ward #2: Candy Langerman Public Works Dir.:      Nick Kahler 
Ward #3: Chris Lux  Water/Wastewater Sup.:  Jim Tjaden 
Ward #4: Tom Yeoman  Park & Rec Director:      Jacob Oswald 
     Library Director:      Michelle Turnis 
 
- Call to Order – 6:00 P.M. 
- Pledge of Allegiance 
- Roll Call 
- Agenda Addition/Agenda Approval 
 
Open Forum: If you wish to address the City Council on subjects pertaining to 
today’s meeting agenda please wait until that item on the agenda is reached.  If you 
wish to address the City Council on an item not on the agenda, please approach the 
lectern and give your name and address for the public record before discussing your 
item. Individuals are normally limited to speaking for no more than three (3) minutes 
on a topic and the Open Forum is by rule limited to a total of twenty (20) minutes. 
 
Consent Agenda (These are routine items and will be enacted by one motion 
without separate discussion unless someone requests an item removed to be 
considered separately.) 
 
Approval of Council Mtg. Minutes    December  5, 2022 
Approval of Payroll      December   15, 2022  
Approval of Bill List 
Approval of Treasurer’s Report – November 2022 
 
 
Public Hearings:  

 
1. Public Hearing on proposal to enter into a Sewer Revenue Loan Agreement 

and to borrow money thereunder 
 

2. Resolution taking additional action on proposal to enter into a Sewer Revenue 
Loan Agreement 

 
 



Resolutions: 
 

3. Resolution Approving submission of the Five-Year Airport Capital 
Improvement Plan   

 
4. Resolution Approving Lease Agreement between the City of Monticello and 

Justin Buck with regard to the “farm” ground at the Monticello Regional 
Airport   
 

5. Resolution Approving Lease Agreement between the City of Monticello and 
Jeff Nagel with regard to the “farm” ground at the Monticello Regional 
Airport   

 
6. Resolution to authorize submission of Application and related documents in 

support thereof to the USDA for purposes of seeking grant and/or loan 
assistance related to the purchase of a Polaris Ranger XP1000, with 
accessories and to schedule Public Information Meeting related to said 
Application 

 
7. Resolution To Acknowledge the hiring of Monticello Library Director full-

time position and setting salary  
 

8. Resolution Approving Plat of Survey to Parcel 2022-85 
 

9. Resolution Approving Plat of Survey to Parcels 2022-88 and 2022-89 
 

10. Resolution Approving Plat of Survey to Parcel 2022-87 for Property at 22102 
Highway 151 
 

 
Ordinances: 

 
11. Ordinance #757amending the Monticello Code of Ordinances, by amending 

provisions pertaining to Chapter 165 “ZONING REGULATIONS”. 2nd 
reading 

 
12. Ordinance #758 amending the Monticello Code of Ordinances, by amending 

provisions pertaining to Chapter 50 “NUISANCE ABATEMENT 
PROCEDURE”. 2nd reading 
 
 

Reports / Potential Actions: 
 

13. City Engineer 
14. Mayor 
15. City Administrator 
16. City Clerk 
17. Public Works Director 



18. Police Chief 
19. Water/Wastewater Superintendent 
20. Park and Recreation Director 

 
 

Adjournment:  Pursuant to §21.4(2) of the Code of Iowa, the City has the right to 
amend this agenda up until 24 hours before the posted meeting time. 
 
Monticello City Council meetings are recorded, by attending and choosing to 
participate you give your consent to be recorded. If you prefer not to be recorded, 
you may submit comments in writing. 
 
 

Meeting Instructions for the Public 
Due to the Covid-19 Virus the public will be 

admitted into this meeting with limited seating. 
 

The meeting will continue to be broadcast on Mediacom (Local Access Channel) and 
will be accessible via Zoom via the following link. 
 
City of Monticello is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
 
Topic: December 19, 2022 Council Meeting 
Time: Dec 19, 2022 06:00 PM Central Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86720084251 
 
Meeting ID: 867 2008 4251 
One tap mobile 
+16469313860,,86720084251# US 
+13017158592,,86720084251# US (Washington DC) 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 646 931 3860 US 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
        +1 305 224 1968 US 
        +1 309 205 3325 US 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
                +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
        +1 689 278 1000 US 
        +1 719 359 4580 US 
        +1 253 205 0468 US 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
Meeting ID: 867 2008 4251 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcf98XYrgE 



 
Regular Council Meeting  
December 5, 2022 – 6:00 P.M. 
Community Media Center 
 
Mayor Dave Goedken called the meeting to order. Council present were: Brenda Hanken, 
Scott Brighton, Candy Langerman, Chris Lux, Wayne Peach and Tom Yeoman. Also 
present were City Administrator Russell Farnum, City Clerk Sally Hinrichsen, Police 
Chief Britt Smith and Park & Rec Director Jacob Oswald.  The public was invited to 
attend the meeting in person, with limited seating or to participate in the meeting 
electronically via “Zoom Meetings” and were encouraged to communicate from Zoom 
Meeting via chat, due to the heightened public health risks of the Coronavirus Pandemic 
(COVID-19).  
 
Yeoman moved to approve the agenda, Peach seconded, roll call was unanimous.  
 
Lux moved to approve the consent agenda; Hanken seconded, roll call was unanimous.  
 
Mayor Goedken opened the public hearing on the proposed amendments to Chapter 50, 
Nuisance Abatement Procedure and Chapter 165 of Municipal Code, Zoning Regulations, 
pertaining to setback requirements on corner lots, adding and amending yard definitions 
and other amendments. Staff received no oral or written comments.  Mayor Goedken 
closed the hearing on the proposed amendments to Chapter 50, Nuisance Abatement 
Procedure and Chapter 165 of Municipal Code, Zoning Regulations, pertaining to setback 
requirements on corner lots, adding and amending yard definitions and other 
amendments.  Yeoman moved Ordinance #757 Amending the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of Monticello, Iowa, by Amending Provisions Pertaining to Zoning Regulations, 
first reading in title only. Peach seconded. Roll call was unanimous. 
 
Lux moved Ordinance #758 amending the Code of Ordinances of the City of Monticello, 
Iowa, by Amending Provisions Pertaining to “Nuisance Abatement Procedure”, first 
reading in title only. Hanken seconded. Roll call was unanimous. 
 
Langerman moved to approve Resolution #2022-151 Resolution to fix a date for a public 
hearing on proposal to enter into a Sewer Revenue Loan Agreement and to borrow 
money thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed $21,000,000 Yeoman seconded, 
roll call was unanimous. Hearing is set for December 19, 2022 at 6:00 PM, which will 
cover the interim financing and the USDA financing for the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project. 
 
Farnum is working with City Engineer Snyder & Associates and their environmental 
planner to schedule a walk-through of the Sixth Street ditch.  After the walk-through, 
they will have a better feel what plans needed to be updates, timeline and the permit 
requirements moving forward.  Once this information is updated, City will meet with the 
property owners to go over the plans and timeline.  
 
Farnum reported the Airport Board is working on their 5-year plan for the Airport, as 
required by the FAA.  The Airport Board bid out the farm ground leasing, which came in 
higher than the current lease amount. 
 



Regular Council Meeting  
December 5, 2022 
 
 
Farnum is working on preliminary budget with Hinrichsen and will provide a time 
schedule soon.  He is working with the Capital Plans related to the budget. 
 
Farnum reported the water/ wastewater employee started last week and is grasping the 
job very quickly. 
 
Farnum reported the Library Board completed the Library Director interviews and the 
candidate has accepted the offer, and she will start January 3, 2023 and will be at the next 
Council meeting. 
 
Farnum reported that Public Works Director was not able to attend and they are 
continuing to clean up trees and trimming the trees in the alleys.  They worked with Main 
Street Board to put up Christmas decorations.  Lights are installed at the Park and Ride, 
however waiting for Alliant to connect the electricity. 
 
Hinrichsen reported working on updating SAMS numbers which are required for City to 
receive federal funding, such as grants.  The special election resolution was filed with the 
Jones County Auditor, who will send a sample ballot once it is prepared for review. 
 
Hinrichsen filed the TIF Certification with the Jones County Auditor’s Office and 
completed the TIF rebate calculations. 
 
Oswald updated the basketball and soccer schedules that are going on now.  Oswald 
reported Holiday on 1st is this Saturday from 4 PM to 7 PM, with Santa stopping by from 
5  PM to 7 PM. 
 
Yeoman moved to go into closed session to discuss strategy with counsel in matters that 
are presently in litigation or where litigation is imminent where its disclosure would be 
likely to prejudice or disadvantage the position of the governmental body in that litigation 
pursuant to Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c), Peach seconded.  Roll call unanimous. 
 
Peach moved to return to open session, Yeoman seconded.  Roll call unanimous.  
Yeoman moved to direct City Administrator to proceed as discussed during closed 
session, Peach seconded.  Roll call vote unanimous. 
 
Peach moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:55 P.M.   
 
 
             
       David Goedken, Mayor  
 
 
   _______   
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 



GROSS PAY OT PAY COMP HRS. COMP NET PAY
ACCRUED TOTAL

AMBULANCE November 28 - December 11, 2022
Brian Bronemann 957.23$                   -$                 0.00 0.00 757.78$           
Jacob Gravel 1,856.45                  144.45             0.00 23.50 1,346.01          
Ben Hein 343.58                     0.00 0.00 292.96             
David Husmann 982.10                     -                   0.00 3.75 841.10             
Mary Intlekofer 1,952.00                  -                   0.00 41.25 1,351.54          
Nick Kahler 144.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 123.92             
Lori Lynch 2,903.40                  725.00             0.00 0.00 1,928.02          
Coletta Matson 1,872.00                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,397.52          
Mandy Norton 559.55                     -                   0.00 0.00 437.25             
Kaleb Payne 690.30                     -                   0.00 0.00 491.83             
Curtis Wyman 1,712.00                  -                   9.75 23.50 1,166.95          

TOTAL AMBULANCE 13,972.61$              869.45$           9.75 92.00 10,134.88$      

CEMETERY November 28 - December 11, 2022
Dan McDonald 1,888.58$                100.58$           0.00 3.38 1,367.61$        

TOTAL CEMETERY 1,888.58$                100.58$           0.00 3.38 1,367.61$        

CITY HALL November 28 - December 11, 2022
Cheryl Clark 1,816.01$                -$                 0.00 17.25 1,236.62$        
Russ Farnum 3,961.54                  -                   0.00 0.00 2,625.35          
Sally Hinrichsen 2,744.73                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,662.19          
Nanci Tuel 1,648.76                  30.35               0.00 0.00 1,073.72          

TOTAL CITY HALL 10,171.04$              30.35$             0.00 17.25 6,597.88$        

COUNCIL / MAYOR
Scott Brighton 300.00$                   -$                 0.00 0.00 276.78$           
Dave Goedken 500.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 453.30             
Brenda Hanken 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 276.05             
Candy Langerman 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 276.05             
Chris Lux 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 275.78             
Wayne Peach 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 235.05             
Tom Yeoman 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 275.05             

TOTAL COUNCIL / MAYOR 2,300.00$                -$                 0.00 0.00 2,068.06$        

LIBRARY November 28 - December 11, 2022
Molli Hunter 1,228.40$                44.40$             0.00 0.00 952.05$           
Penny Schmit 1,445.13                  39.53               0.00 0.00 786.93             
Michelle Turnis 709.48                     -                   0.00 0.00 521.67             

TOTAL LIBRARY 3,383.01$                83.93$             0.00 0.00 2,260.65$        

MBC November 28 - December 11, 2022
Keegan Arduser 1,384.62$                -$                 0.00 0.00 1,056.57$        
Jacob Oswald 2,193.88                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,647.00          

TOTAL MBC 3,578.50$                -$                 0.00 0.00 2,703.57$        

POLICE November 28 - December 11, 2022
Zach Buehler 231.39$                   -$                 0.00 0.00 198.31$           
Peter Fleming 2,449.44                  -                   0.00 5.25 1,700.19          
Dawn Graver 2,628.14                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,891.47          

DEPARTMENT

PAYROLL - DECEMBER 15, 2022

Page 1 of 2



GROSS PAY OT PAY COMP HRS. COMP NET PAY
ACCRUED TOTAL

DEPARTMENT

PAYROLL - DECEMBER 15, 2022

Erik Honda 2,614.60                  -                   0.00 6.75 1,941.60          
Blaine Kamp 2,583.84                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,928.36          
Jordan Koos 2,645.36                  -                   10.50 45.50 1,803.51          
Britt Smith 3,461.54                  -                   0.00 0.00 2,523.83          
Madonna Staner 1,623.20                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,230.20          
Brian Tate 2,625.84                  -                   0.00 17.25 1,859.37          

TOTAL POLICE 20,863.35$              -$                 10.50 74.75 15,076.84$      

ROAD USE November 28 - December 11, 2022
Zeb Bowser 1,788.01$                -$                 0.00 2.25 1,255.35$        
Nick Kahler 2,238.39                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,527.72          
TJ Nealson 1,728.00                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,309.79          
Jasper Scott 1,788.00                  -                   0.00 0.13 1,231.46          

TOTAL ROAD USE 7,542.40$                -$                 0.00 2.38 5,324.32$        

SEWER November 26 - December 9, 2022
Tim Schultz 2,036.00$                -$                 0.00 7.13 1,417.44$        
Jim Tjaden 2,576.92                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,867.32          

TOTAL SEWER 4,612.92$                -$                 0.00 7.13 3,284.76$        

WATER November 26 - December 9, 2022
Scott Hagen 1,478.40$                -$                 0.00 0.00 1,178.38$        

TOTAL WATER 1,478.40$                -$                 0.00 0.00 1,178.38$        

TOTAL - ALL DEPTS. 69,790.81$              1,084.31$        20.25 196.89 49,996.95$      

Page 2 of 2



Thu Dec 15, 2022 11:03 AM CLAIMS REPORT Page     1
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                          VENDOR            CHECK                
                     VENDOR NAME                    REFERENCE                               AMOUNT         TOTAL     CHECK#  DATE                
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     GENERAL                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     POLICE DEPARTMENT                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
                     AARON'S AUTOMOTIVE LLC         PD VEHICLE OPERATING                                  315.30                                                                                                                                                
                     BLACK HILLS ENERGY             4801 5237 59                                          251.33                                                                                                                                                
                     JACOB HEINSIUS                 PD PEST CONTROL                                        85.00                                                                                                                                                
                     IOWA DEPT OF PUBLIC SAFETY     PD IOWA SYSTEM                                        300.00                                                                                                                                                
                     JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL           PD BLDG REPAIR/MAINT                                   13.96                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO EXPRESS INC         PD SUPPLIES                                           102.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               110  POLICE DEPARTMENT TOTAL                             1,067.59                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     ANIMAL CONTROL                                                                                                                                                                                                                             
                     ANIMAL WELFARE FRIENDS         ANIMAL CONTROL                                        105.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               190  ANIMAL CONTROL TOTAL                                  105.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     AQUATIC CENTER                                                                                                                                                                                                                             
                     BLACK HILLS ENERGY             6214 3735 03                                           36.32                                                                                                                                                
                     THREE GENERATIONS LLC          POOL CONCESSIONS                                      256.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               440  AQUATIC CENTER TOTAL                                  292.32                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     CEMETERY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
                     TRI COUNTY PROPANE LLC         CEMETERY UTILITIES                                    310.62                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               450  CEMETERY TOTAL                                        310.62                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     ENGINEER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
                     SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC       ENGINEERING FEES                                    3,459.75                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               640  ENGINEER TOTAL                                      3,459.75                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     ATTORNEY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
                     LYNCH DALLAS, P.C.             ATTORNEY FEES                                       1,006.50                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               641  ATTORNEY TOTAL                                      1,006.50                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     CITY HALL/GENERAL BLDGS                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     BLACK HILLS ENERGY             1287 4080 48                                          556.47                                                                                                                                                
                     JACOB HEINSIUS                 CH PEST CONTROL                                       140.00                                                                                                                                                
                     LASLEY ELECTRIC LLC            CH BLDG REPAIR/MAINT                                   16.99                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO EXPRESS INC         CH ADVERTISING                                        666.43                                                                                                                                                
                     PFM FINANCIAL ADVISORS LLC     CH PRO FEES                                         7,500.00                                                                                                                                                
                     SHRED-MASTER                   CH MISC CONTRACT WORK                                 144.18                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               650  CITY HALL/GENERAL BLDGS TOTAL                       9,024.07                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               001  GENERAL TOTAL                                      15,265.85                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO BERNDES CENTER                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
                     PARKS                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     BAKER PAPER CO INC             MBC BUILDING SUPPLIES                                 181.38                                                                                                                                                
                     BLACK HILLS ENERGY             3293 7656 61                                        1,571.15                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Monticello IA                                                OPER: CC 



Thu Dec 15, 2022 11:03 AM CLAIMS REPORT Page     2
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                          VENDOR            CHECK                
                     VENDOR NAME                    REFERENCE                               AMOUNT         TOTAL     CHECK#  DATE                
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     JACOB HEINSIUS                 MBC PEST CONTROL                                      140.00                                                                                                                                                
                     CENTRAL IOWA DISTRIBUTING INC  MBC BLDG REPAIR/MAINT                                 273.00                                                                                                                                                
                     GREAT JONES COUNTY FAIR        MBC ADVERTISING                                       200.00                                                                                                                                                
                     LASLEY ELECTRIC LLC            MBC BLDG REPAIR/MAINT                                 106.24                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               430  PARKS TOTAL                                         2,471.77                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               005  MONTICELLO BERNDES CENTER TOTAL                     2,471.77                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     FIRE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
                     FIRE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
                     BLACK HILLS ENERGY             7971 7910 14                                          428.84                                                                                                                                                
                     CNH CAPITAL                    FIRE EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                               350.74                                                                                                                                                
                     JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL           FIRE SUPPLIES                                          43.89                                                                                                                                                
                     MCALEER WATER CONDITIONING INC FIRE SOFTENER SALT                                     35.20                                                                                                                                                
                     MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES   FIRE MINOR EQUIPMENT                                1,202.34                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               150  FIRE TOTAL                                          2,061.01                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               015  FIRE TOTAL                                          2,061.01                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     AMBULANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
                     AMBULANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
                     AARON'S AUTOMOTIVE LLC         AMB VEHICLE OPERATING                                 188.58                                                                                                                                                
                     BLACK HILLS ENERGY             4801 5237 59                                          251.33                                                                                                                                                
                     JACOB HEINSIUS                 AMB PEST CONTROL                                       85.00                                                                                                                                                
                     FREESE MOTORS INC              AMB VEHICLE OPERATING                                 191.53                                                                                                                                                
                     IOWA DEPT OF HUMAN SERVICES    AMB REFUND                                          2,702.37                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO EXPRESS INC         AMB OFFICE SUPPLIES                                   102.00                                                                                                                                                
                     UNITY POINT HEALTH             AMB MEDICAL SUPPLIES                                  493.90                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               160  AMBULANCE TOTAL                                     4,014.71                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               016  AMBULANCE TOTAL                                     4,014.71                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     TRUST FUND/STREET BOND                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
                     PUBLIC WORKS                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
                     CITY OF MONTICELLO             STREET BOND REFUND-ARRIG ENT                          300.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               299  PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL                                    300.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               023  TRUST FUND/STREET BOND TOTAL                          300.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     LIBRARY IMPROVEMENT                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
                     LIBRARY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS           LIB IMP BOOKS                                         373.47                                                                                                                                                
                     FINDAWAY WORLD LLC             LIB IMP BOOKS                                         787.40                                                                                                                                                
                     MICRO MARKETING LLC            LIB IMP BOOKS                                          20.99                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Monticello IA                                                OPER: CC 



Thu Dec 15, 2022 11:03 AM CLAIMS REPORT Page     3
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                          VENDOR            CHECK                
                     VENDOR NAME                    REFERENCE                               AMOUNT         TOTAL     CHECK#  DATE                
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               410  LIBRARY TOTAL                                       1,181.86                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               030  LIBRARY IMPROVEMENT TOTAL                           1,181.86                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     LIBRARY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     LIBRARY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     CULLIGAN TOTAL WATER -         LIB BUILDING SUPPLIES                                  11.65                                                                                                                                                
                     JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL           LIB PROGRAMS/PROMOTIONS                                 8.39                                                                                                                                                
                     KOCH BROTHERS, INC.            LIB OFFICE SUPPLIES                                   143.79                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO EXPRESS INC         LIB OFFICE SUPPLIES                                    92.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               410  LIBRARY TOTAL                                         255.83                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               041  LIBRARY TOTAL                                         255.83                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     AIRPORT                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     AIRPORT                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     ALLIANT ENERGY-IES             AIRPORT ELECTRIC                                       20.82                                                                                                                                                
                     IOWA PUBLIC AIRPORTS ASSOC     AIRPORT DUES                                          175.00                                                                                                                                                
                     MCALEER WATER CONDITIONING INC AIRPORT BUILDING SUPPLIES                              35.00                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO AVIATION INC        AIRPORT EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                            232.33                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO EXPRESS INC         AIRPORT ADVERTISING                                   270.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               280  AIRPORT TOTAL                                         733.15                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               046  AIRPORT TOTAL                                         733.15                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     ROAD USE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
                     STREETS                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     BLACK HILLS ENERGY             5682 1986 07                                          311.39                                                                                                                                                
                     ROBERT P CLAUSSEN              RU EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                                 325.00                                                                                                                                                
                     BRIAN CROWLEY                  RU EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                                 542.89                                                                                                                                                
                     KIMBALL MIDWEST                RU SUPPLIES                                           191.42                                                                                                                                                
                     LAPORTE MOTOR SUPPLY           RU EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                                 619.74                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO EXPRESS INC         RU ADVERTISING-WINTER PARKING                         202.50                                                                                                                                                
                     THOMPSON TRUCK & TRAILER, INC. RU EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                                  82.10                                                                                                                                                
                     WHITE HAWK PLUMBING & HEATING  RU BLDG REPAIR/MAINT                                  232.36                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               210  STREETS TOTAL                                       2,507.40                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               110  ROAD USE TOTAL                                      2,507.40                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     DEBT SERVICE                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
                     DEBT SERVICE                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
                     UMB BANK, N.A.                 DEBT 2014 GO FEES                                     430.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               710  DEBT SERVICE TOTAL                                    430.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Monticello IA                                                OPER: CC 



Thu Dec 15, 2022 11:03 AM CLAIMS REPORT Page     4
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                          VENDOR            CHECK                
                     VENDOR NAME                    REFERENCE                               AMOUNT         TOTAL     CHECK#  DATE                
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     WATER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     UMB BANK, N.A.                 2016 WATER GO BOND FEES                                42.50                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               810  WATER TOTAL                                            42.50                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     SEWER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     UMB BANK, N.A.                 2016 SEWER GO BOND FEES                                10.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               815  SEWER TOTAL                                            10.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     STORM WATER FUND                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
                     UMB BANK, N.A.                 2016 STORMWATER GO BOND FEES                           17.50                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               865  STORM WATER FUND TOTAL                                 17.50                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               200  DEBT SERVICE TOTAL                                    500.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     PARK IMPROVEMENT                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
                     CAPITAL PROJECTS                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
                     FAREWAY STORES #840-1          PARK IMP - HOLIDAY ON 1ST                              68.82                                                                                                                                                
                     ANDREA RUNDLE                  PARK IMP - HOLIDAY ON 1ST                             710.00                                                                                                                                                
                     JONES COUNTY PORK PRODUCERS    PARK IMP - HOLIDAY ON 1ST                             279.55                                                                                                                                                
                     MYERS-COX CO.                  PARK IMP - HOLIDAY ON 1ST                             233.55                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               750  CAPITAL PROJECTS TOTAL                              1,291.92                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               313  PARK IMPROVEMENT TOTAL                              1,291.92                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     WATER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     WATER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     BLACK HILLS ENERGY             5682 1986 07                                          453.19                                                                                                                                                
                     IOWA ONE CALL                  WATER SYSTEM                                           25.70                                                                                                                                                
                     JLT HOMES LLC                  OVERPAYMENT REFUND                                    243.75                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO EXPRESS INC         WATER ADVERTISING                                     225.00                                                                                                                                                
                     MUNICIPAL SUPPLY INC           WATER SUPPLIES                                      2,248.20                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               810  WATER TOTAL                                         3,195.84                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               600  WATER TOTAL                                         3,195.84                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     SEWER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     SEWER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     BLACK HILLS ENERGY             5682 1986 07                                          311.38                                                                                                                                                
                     FAREWAY STORES #840-1          SEWER LAB SUPPLIES                                     11.37                                                                                                                                                
                     IOWA ONE CALL                  SEWER SYSTEM                                           25.70                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO EXPRESS INC         SEWER ADVERTISING                                     225.00                                                                                                                                                
                     MUNICIPAL SUPPLY INC           SEWER SUPPLIES                                         94.22                                                                                                                                                
                     NEXT GENERATION PLBG & HTG LLC SEWER EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                               65.00                                                                                                                                                
                     TRI COUNTY PROPANE LLC         SEWER UTILITIES                                     1,669.81                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Monticello IA                                                OPER: CC 



Thu Dec 15, 2022 11:03 AM CLAIMS REPORT Page     5
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                          VENDOR            CHECK                
                     VENDOR NAME                    REFERENCE                               AMOUNT         TOTAL     CHECK#  DATE                
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               815  SEWER TOTAL                                         2,402.48                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               610  SEWER TOTAL                                         2,402.48                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     SEWER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
                     SEWER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     LYNCH DALLAS, P.C.             SEWER FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS                           445.50                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               815  SEWER TOTAL                                           445.50                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               613  SEWER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT TOTAL                       445.50                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     SANITATION                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
                     SANITATION                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
                     BLACK HILLS ENERGY             5682 1986 07                                          311.38                                                                                                                                                
                     REPUBLIC SERVICES              DUMPSTER COLLECTIONS                               12,465.21                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               840  SANITATION TOTAL                                   12,776.59                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               670  SANITATION TOTAL                                   12,776.59                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   ==============                                                                                                                                               
                                                    Accounts Payable Total                             49,403.91                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Monticello IA                                                OPER: CC 



Thu Dec 15, 2022 11:03 AM CLAIMS REPORT Page     6
                                              CLAIMS FUND SUMMARY                                               
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                                 
                                                   FUND  NAME                                   AMOUNT                                           
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                   001   GENERAL                             15,265.85                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   005   MONTICELLO BERNDES CENTER            2,471.77                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   015   FIRE                                 2,061.01                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   016   AMBULANCE                            4,014.71                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   023   TRUST FUND/STREET BOND                 300.00                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   030   LIBRARY IMPROVEMENT                  1,181.86                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   041   LIBRARY                                255.83                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   046   AIRPORT                                733.15                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   110   ROAD USE                             2,507.40                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   200   DEBT SERVICE                           500.00                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   313   PARK IMPROVEMENT                     1,291.92                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   600   WATER                                3,195.84                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   610   SEWER                                2,402.48                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   613   SEWER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT              445.50                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   670   SANITATION                          12,776.59                                                                                                                                                          
                                                         ------------------------------- -------------                                                                                                                                                          
                                                         TOTAL FUNDS                         49,403.91                                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Monticello IA                                                OPER: CC 









 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:  In order to issue the USDA-approved financing for the construction of the Wastewater 
Treatment Facility, Council needs to hold a hearing on the proposal to enter into the Sewer Revenue 
Loan Agreement with the USDA. 
 
Following the public hearing, approval of the resolution is recommended. 
 

Agenda Item: # 1 & 2 
Agenda Date: 12/19/2022 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Public Hearing on Wastewater Treatment Facility Financing  

Type of Action Requested: Resolution 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 
Resolution 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 12/13/2022  
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



NOTICE OF PROPOSED ACTION TO INSTITUTE PROCEEDINGS  
TO ENTER INTO A LOAN AGREEMENT AND TO BORROW MONEY THEREUNDER IN 

A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $21,000,000 
 

(SEWER REVENUE) 

The City Council of the City of Monticello, Iowa, will meet on December 19, 2022, at the 
Monticello Renaissance Center, 220 E. 1st Street, in the City, at 6:00 o’clock p.m., for the 
purpose of instituting proceedings and taking action to enter into a loan agreement (the “Loan 
Agreement”) and to borrow money thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed $21,000,000, 
for the purpose of paying the cost, to that extent, of planning, designing and constructing 
improvements and extensions to the Municipal Sanitary Sewer System (the “Utility”) of the City. 

The Loan Agreement will not constitute a general obligation of the City, nor will it be 
payable in any manner by taxation but, together with any additional obligations of the City as may 
be hereafter issued and outstanding from time to time ranking on a parity therewith, will be payable 
solely and only from the net revenues of the Utility. 

 
At the aforementioned time and place, oral or written objections may be filed or made to 

the proposal to enter into the Loan Agreement.  After receiving objections, the City may determine 
to enter into the Loan Agreement, in which case, the decision will be final unless appealed to the 
District Court within fifteen (15) days thereafter. 

By order of the City Council of the City of Monticello, Iowa. 

Sally Hinrichsen 
City Clerk 

 



 

801 Grand Avenue | Suite 4100 | Des Moines, IA | 50309-8002 | T 515.283.1000 | F 515.283.1060 | dorsey.com 

MINUTES FOR HEARING AND 
ADDITIONAL ACTION ON PROPOSAL 
TO ENTER INTO A SEWER REVENUE 
LOAN AGREEMENT 

435926-33   

Monticello, Iowa 

December 19, 2022 

The City Council of the City of Monticello, Iowa, met on December 19, 2022, at 6:00 p.m., 
at the Monticello Renaissance Center, in the City. 

The meeting was called to order by the Mayor, and the roll was called showing the 
following members of the Council present and absent: 

Present:    

Absent:   . 

This being the time and place specified for holding the public hearing and taking action on 
the proposal to enter into a Sewer Revenue Loan Agreement in a principal amount not to exceed 
$21,000,000, the City Clerk announced that no written objections had been placed on file.  
Whereupon, the Mayor called for any written or oral objections, and there being none, the Mayor 
closed the public hearing 

After due consideration and discussion, Council Member ___________________ 
introduced the following resolution and moved its adoption, seconded by Council Member 
_____________________.  The Mayor put the question upon the adoption of said resolution, and 
the roll being called, the following Council Members voted: 

Ayes:    

Nays:   . 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the resolution duly adopted, as follows: 

  



 

801 Grand Avenue | Suite 4100 | Des Moines, IA | 50309-8002 | T 515.283.1000 | F 515.283.1060 | dorsey.com 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

Resolution taking additional action on proposal to enter into a Sewer Revenue Loan 
Agreement 

WHEREAS, the City of Monticello (the “City”), in Jones County, State of Iowa, did 
heretofore establish a Municipal Sanitary Sewer System (the “Utility”) in and for the City which 
has continuously supplied sanitary sewer service in and to the City and its inhabitants since its 
establishment; and 

WHEREAS, the management and control of the Utility are vested in the City Council (the 
“Council”) and no board of trustees exists for this purpose; and 

WHEREAS, the City heretofore proposed to enter into a Sewer Revenue Loan Agreement 
(the “Loan Agreement”) and to borrow money thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed 
$21,000,000, pursuant to the provisions of Section 384.24A of the Code of Iowa, for the purpose 
of paying the cost, to that extent, of planning, designing, and constructing improvements and 
extensions to the Utility, and pursuant to law and a notice duly published, the City Council has 
held a public hearing on such proposal on December 19, 2022;  

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the City Council of the City of Monticello, Iowa, 
as follows: 

Section 1. The City Council hereby determines to enter into the Loan Agreement in 
the future and orders that Sewer Revenue bonds or notes be issued at such time in evidence thereof.  
The City Council further declares that this resolution constitutes the “additional action” required 
by Section 384.24A of the Code of Iowa. 

Section 2. All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith be and the same are 
hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 3. This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval, as provided by law. 

Passed and approved December 19, 2022. 

  
Mayor 

Attest: 

  
City Clerk 



 

801 Grand Avenue | Suite 4100 | Des Moines, IA | 50309-8002 | T 515.283.1000 | F 515.283.1060 | dorsey.com 

• • • • 

At the conclusion of the meeting, and upon motion and vote, the City Council adjourned. 

  
Mayor 

Attest: 

  
City Clerk



 

801 Grand Avenue | Suite 4100 | Des Moines, IA | 50309-8002 | T 515.283.1000 | F 515.283.1060 | dorsey.com 

ATTESTATION CERTIFICATE: 

STATE OF IOWA 
COUNTY OF JONES SS: 
CITY OF MONTICELLO 

I, the undersigned, City Clerk of the City of Monticello, Iowa, do hereby certify that 
attached hereto is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the City Council of the City relating 
to the hearing on the City’s intention to enter into a Loan Agreement, as referred to herein. 

WITNESS MY HAND this ____ day of _____________________, 2022. 

  
City Clerk 

 



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:  The Airport is required to develop a 5-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) on an annual 
basis. The CIP outlines the major capital projects planned for the next 5 years. 
 
Background:  The FAA and Iowa DOT require the Airport and the Sponsor (the City) to prepare a 5-
year capital plan (“CIP”) and submit it annually. 
 
The Capital Improvement Plan outlines the Federal and State resources that are planned to be used on 
major improvements at the Airport over the next 5 years. There is no obligation on the City’s part to 
pursue these projects, which also involve a local match for funding, but generally the City should try to 
follow the projects as a guideline, which keeps Airport facilities in top operating order and maximizes 
the use of Federal and State funds that may be available. 
 
The current project at the Airport is the taxiway/apron extension, which used funding from FY22 and 
FY23.  Also planned for next summer is painting another hangar. Subsequently, the airport plans to 
rehab the existing runway, which is a major maintenance project needed to keep the runway in a good 
condition. 
 
The Council is reminded that the Airport generates its own revenue through operations, fuel sales, 
hangar leases, and leases of the ag land around the airport. Local property taxes do not subsidize any of 
these projects or operations at the airport. 
 
Recommendation: A motion to approve is recommended. 
 

Agenda Item: # 3 
Agenda Date: 12/19/2022 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Approval of Airport 5-year CIP (Capital Improvement Plan) 

Type of Action Requested: Motion 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 
5-year CIP 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 12/13/2022  
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



           
 
 

The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #  
 

Approving submission of the Five-Year Airport 
Capital Improvement Plan 

 
WHEREAS, as a condition to receiving State and Federal aid for the Monticello Regional 
Airport, the following provisions must be met: 
 

• Approved 5-Year Capital Improvement Plan 
• Certification that the local match exists if the grant is awarded 
• Authorization to submit the proposed projects for State or Federal Grants; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan has been prepared and reviewed by the 
Monticello Airport Board and City Council and found to be appropriate and in the best interests 
of the City of Monticello and the Monticello Regional Airport.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Monticello authorizes the 
submission of the Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan for potential Federal Aviation 
Administration Grants and certifies that the local match of 10% is available for those projects 
successfully awarded a grant. 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my 
name and caused the Great Seal of the City of Monticello, Iowa to 
be affixed hereto.  Done this 19th day of December, 2022. 

 
__________________________________________ 
David Goedken, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 



Monticello	Regional	Airport	-	MXO	-	Monticello,	Iowa
Russell	Farnum rfarnum@ci.monticello.ia.us

319-465-3577 Russell	Farnum

2023

Construct	Taxiway	(Project	completion)	(Multi-year	funding	previously	approved)

Paint	another	Hangar	(ARPA	=	$32,000)

2024

Pavement	Management	Report	Runway	15/33
Based	on	2020	PCI	Inspection	November	21,	2020
PCI	values	range	from	TH01MO	-	04	(PCI	=	51)	to	TH01OM	-	02	(PCI	=	82)
Estimated	2020	Cost:	$165,000	x	30%	inflation	=	$214,500	Fed	share	@	90%	=	193,050
Anticipated	NPE	=	$150,000	+	122,000	carry	over	from	FY23	=	$272,000
Anticipated	BIL	=	$145,000

2025

Pavement	Management	Report	Runway	15/33
Based	on	2020	PCI	Inspection	November	21,	2020
R15	MO-01	and	T01MO-01272
Estimated	2020	cost:	$229,214	x	30%	inflation	=	$297,978.00	Fed	share	@	90%	=	268,180
Anticipated	NPE	=	$150,000	+	Carry	over	from	FY24	=	78,950	=$228,950
Accumulated	BIL	=	$	304,000

2026

Construct	Apron,	Taxiway,	and	new	Public	Box	Hangar(s)	*	(Restricted	to	aeronautical	use)
6,000	(50'	deep	by	120'	wide)	sqft	Box	Hangar	@	$200/sqft	=	$1,200,000
Anticipated	NPE	=	$150,000	+	Carry	over	from	FY25	$228,950	=	$378,950	(LM	=	37,895)
Anticipated	BIL	=	$145,000	+	Carry	over	from	FY25	$35,810	=	$180,810	(LM	=	18,081)
Anticipated	IA	DOT	Vertical	Infrastructure	Grant	@	30%	local	match	=	$584,327	x	0.7	=$409,029	(LM	=
175,298)

2027

Parcel	acquisition	for	future	15/33	Runway	Extension

Purchase	Price	and	local	share	TBD

November	15,	2022

$0.00

$193,050.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$214,500.00

$29,798.00

$180,810.00
$409,029.00

$297,978.00

$1,200,000.00

$21,450.00

$231,211.00

$0.00

$268,180.00

$378,950.00



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:  There are 259 acres of crop land on the Airport property that are regularly leased to farmers 
by the City. The leases typically have a 3-year term, and the City re-bids the leases at the end of that 
lease cycle.  
 
Background:  The Airport Board determined that the City should take bids in writing, then ask the top 
three bidders to attend the December 6 Airport Board meeting, where the bids were offered in a live 
auction format. The bid tabulation from those submitting written bids is below: 
 

 
 
The top three bidders are shaded in gray in the table. At the December 6 Airport Board meeting, the 
auction yielded an improved bid at $340 per acre by Justin Buck as high bidder. The Airport Board 

Name Per Acre bid Total bid Notes
Ray Kurt 201 52,059$       
Riley Bossard 63,750$       Conservation Farming proposal
Mike First 71,000$       Not including 10 acres west of creek
Logan Hanken 275$              71,225$       
Mike Kraus 71,300$       Not including 10 acres west of creek
Tyler McQuillen 74,000$       285.71 per acre
Ethan Zumbach 300$              77,700$       
Buck Family Farms (Mike Buck) 84,175$       325 per acre
Justin Buck 84,434$       326 per acre

Airport Agricultural Land Lease Bids
Bid Tabulation

12/1/2022

Agenda Item: # 4 & 5 
Agenda Date: 12/19/2022 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Approval of Leases for Airport agricultural land 

Type of Action Requested: Resolution 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 
Leases (2) – Buck and Nagel 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 12/13/2022  
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



determined that the 10 acre “Nagel” portion should be offered to Nagels at that price, since it is only 
accessible through the Nagel property. Buck agreed with that provision, so Buck’s lease will be for 249 
acres with a “lump sum” price of $ 84,660 ($340 times 249 acres), Nagel’s lease will be a “lump sum” 
of $ 3,400 ($340 per acre times 10 acres).  
 
The Airport Board recommended approval of these two leases. 
 
Recommendation: Approval of the two Resolutions related to the Airport Farm leases is 
recommended. 
 



The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #  
 

Approving Lease Agreement between the City of Monticello and Justin Buck 
with regard to the “farm” ground at the Monticello Regional Airport. 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Monticello Airport Board, with the consent and approval of the 

Monticello City Council, held a live auction at the Regular Airport Board meeting held on 
December 6, 2022 at which a high bid in the amount of $ 84,660.00 was received to rent the 
“farm” ground consistent with the proposed lease agreement, and 

 
WHEREAS, The high bidder was Justin Buck, who was present. Buck acknowledged 

the terms of the lease related to crop productions, and  
 

WHEREAS, The Council finds that entry into the lease agreement is appropriate and in 
the best interests of the City and of the Airport. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby approve of the entry into the proposed three (3) year lease agreement between Justin 
Buck and the City of Monticello at the annual rental rate of $ 84,660.00 annually, and directs the 
Mayor to execute the lease on behalf of the City Council and further directs the City 
Administrator to obtain the signature of Justin Buck, as tenant. 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my 
name and caused the Great Seal of the City of Monticello, Iowa to 
be affixed hereto.  Done this 19th day of December, 2022. 

 
__________________________________________ 
David Goedken, Mayor 

Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 



The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #  
 

Approving Lease Agreement between the City of Monticello 
 and Jeff Nagel with regard to the “farm” ground at the Monticello Regional Airport. 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Monticello Airport Board, with the consent and approval of the 

Monticello City Council, held a live auction at the Regular Airport Board meeting held on 
December 6, 2022 at which a high bid in the amount of $ 340.00 per acre to lease the entire 
“farm” was received, and 

 
WHEREAS, The high bidder was Justin Buck, who acknowledged that Nagel could 

lease the 10 acres that were west of the creek, and accessible only through other Nagel-owned 
property, subject to the same price and terms of the lease related to crop productions, and  

 
WHEREAS, Nagel has agreed to lease that 10-acre parcel at that price, for a net annual 

lease amount of $ 3,400.00, and 
 

WHEREAS, The Council finds that entry into the lease agreement is appropriate and in 
the best interests of the City and of the Airport. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby approve of the entry into the proposed three (3) year lease agreement between Jeff 
Nagel and the City of Monticello at the annual rental rate of $ 3,400.00 annually, and directs the 
Mayor to execute the lease on behalf of the City Council and further directs the City 
Administrator to obtain the signature of Jeff Nagel, as tenant. 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my 
name and caused the Great Seal of the City of Monticello, Iowa to 
be affixed hereto.  Done this 19th day of December, 2022. 

 
__________________________________________ 
David Goedken, Mayor 

Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:  The Monticello Fire Chief has prepared an application for a USDA Grant to purchase an 
ATV for the Department. 
 
Background:  The Fire Department has been considering the purchase of an ATV for the department 
to assist in brush and field fires.  They have also been called to help with search and rescue operations 
where if would have been quicker to use and ATV. 
 
 
A public information meeting, as required by the USDA, will be set for January 16, 2023 at 6:00 PM 
 
Recommendation: A motion to approve is recommended. 
 

Agenda Item: # 6 
Agenda Date: 12/19/2022 
 

Agenda Items Description:   to authorize submission of Application and related documents in support 
thereof to the USDA for purposes of seeking grant and/or loan assistance related to the purchase of a 
Polaris Ranger XP1000, with accessories and to schedule Public Information Meeting related to said 
Application 

Type of Action Requested: Motion 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 
  

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 12/13/2022  
Preparer: Sally Hinrichsen 
 



 
 

The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, 
IOWA 

 
RESOLUTION #  

 
Resolution to authorize submission of Application and related documents in support 

thereof to the USDA for purposes of seeking grant and/or loan assistance related to the 
purchase of a Polaris Ranger XP1000, with accessories and to schedule Public 

Information Meeting related to said Application 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Monticello plans to seek financial assistance from the USDA 
related to the purchase of a new Polaris Ranger XP1000, with brush unit, 50-gallon 
stainless steel tank, electric start pump and hose with aluminum skid, and 
 
WHEREAS, as part of the USDA application process the City Council must hold a 
Public Information Meeting on the intent to apply for said grant funds.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby approve of the submission of Grants and related documents requesting grant 
and/or loan assistance from the USDA related to the purchase of a new Polaris Ranger 
XP1000, and does hereby schedule a public meeting on the intent to seek grant funding 
from the USDA for the 16th day of January, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. at the regularly scheduled 
City Council meeting to be held in the Monticello City Council Chambers. 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal of 
the City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  
Done this 19th day of December, 2022. 

 
__________________________________________ 
David Goedken, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 

 
 



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:  The Library Board accepted applications, interviewed candidates and selected a qualified 
candidate, Faith Brehm, to be appointed as Library Director. Brehm has accepted the position at a 
starting salary of $42,000 per year plus 1 week of vacation granted upon hire. 
 
Brehm has a Master’s Degree in English and experience working with budgets, supervising staff, and 
dealing with members of the public. While her experience is not directly in Library services, her 
background relates closely to the position. Further, she is enrolling online in the University of 
Wisconsin Masters’ Program for a second advanced degree, in Library Science.  
 
Brehm grew up in Monticello and now lives in Dubuque, and is looking forward to moving back to 
Monticello. 
 
Recommendation: A motion to approve is recommended. 
 

Agenda Item: # 7 
Agenda Date: 12/19/2022 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Acknowledging the Hire of new Library Director and setting salary 

Type of Action Requested: Resolution 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 12/13/2022  
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



 
 

The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #   
 

To Acknowledge the hiring of Monticello Library  
Director full-time position and setting wage   

  
 
WHEREAS, the Library Board hire and set the wages for the Library staff, and 
 
WHEREAS, full-time Library Director turned in their resignation, the Library Board 
desires to expedite the hiring of staff to fill the position with a salary of $42,000 and one 
(1) week of vacation on hire, and   
 
WHEREAS, the Council recognizes that the Library Board is vested with the power to 
hire and set library staff wages and that the purpose of the Council approval of this 
Resolution is to acknowledge the hiring of full-time staff and setting the wage; and to 
give direction to the City Payroll Clerk. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby acknowledge the hiring of Library Director and wages noted herein. 
 

  IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto  
  subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal for  
  the City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed.  Done  
  this 19th day of December, 2022. 
 

   ______________________________________ 
   David Goedken, Mayor   
Attest: 
 
_________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 



Communication Page 

 

 

 

Synopsis:  This proposed plat will subdivide Lot 11 of Welter’s Subdivision, separating off a parcel of 
1.83 acres for the expansion of Oak Street Manufacturing.  This project was approved last December 
(2021), and the building is nearly complete. The Welters will be selling the property to Oak Street after 
this action is approved. The property is shown below: 

Recommendation:  The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed this plat at their meeting of 
December 13, and recommended approval by a vote of 5-0.  Approval of the Resolution and plat for 
Parcel 2022-85, is recommended. 

Agenda Item: # 8 
Agenda Date: 12/19/2022 

Agenda Items Description:  Approving Plat of Parcel 2022-85 (Welter’s Lot 11) 

Type of Action Requested: Resolution 

Attachments & Enclosures: 

Plat 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item: 
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 12/13/2022  
Preparer: Russell Farnum 

Oak Street 
Parcel 2022-85 



The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #  
     

Approving Plat of Survey to Parcel 2022-85 
 

WHEREAS, The Plat of Survey to Parcel 2022-85 has been presented to the City 
Council for approval, same being located within the City Limits of the City of 
Monticello, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Plat of Survey was created to a parcel off property titled in Welter 
Enterprises and located at 205 Welter Drive same to be sold by the owner to increase the 
size of 255 Welter Drive lot, and  
 
WHEREAS, The City Planning and Zoning Board has reviewed the Plat of Survey and 
recommends that it be approved, and 
 
WHEREAS,  The City Council finds that the Plat of Survey to Parcels 2022-19 should 
be approved. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby approve the Plat of Survey to Parcel 2022-85. 

 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal of 
the City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  
Done this 19th day of December, 2022. 

 
 
__________________________________________ 
David Goedken, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 









Communication Page 

 

 

 

Synopsis:  In October, the City Council approved a petition by Four-H properties to rezone property 

on Sycamore Street from R-1 to R-2, in order to allow them to build two new attached single-family 

homes on the property. 

Now the foundation has been completed and the surveyor has completed the plat to separate the two 

units for single-family ownership. The plat would create parcels 2022-88 and 2022-89. The lots are 

still characteristic of the neighborhood and comply with the zoning and subdivision requirements. 

Recommendation: The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed this plat at their meeting of 

December 13, and recommended approval by a vote of 5-0.  Approval of the Resolution is 

recommended. 

Agenda Item: # 9
 Agenda Date: 12/19/2022 

Agenda Items Description:   Approving Plat of Parcels 2022-88 and -89 (Four-H Properties) 

Type of Action Requested: Resolution 

Attachments & Enclosures: 

Plat 

Fiscal Impact: 

Budget Line Item: 

Budget Summary: 

Expenditure: 

Revenue:  

City Council Meeting 

Prep. Date: 12/13/2022  

Preparer: Russell Farnum 



The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #  
     

Approving Plat of Survey to Parcels 2022-88 and 2022-89 
 

WHEREAS, The Plat of Survey to Parcels 2022-88 and 2022-89 has been presented to 
the City Council for approval, same being located within the City Limits of the City of 
Monticello, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Plat of Survey was created to a parcel off property titled in Four-H 
Properties LLC and located at 201 East Second Street and 203 East Second Street. The 
duplex built at located at 201 East Second Street and 203 East Second Street is to be sold 
by the owner as two separate parcels, and  
 
WHEREAS, The City Planning and Zoning Board has reviewed the Plat of Survey and 
recommends that it be approved, and 
 
WHEREAS,  The City Council finds that the Plat of Survey to Parcels 2022-88 and 
2022-89 should be approved. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby approve the Plat of Survey to Parcels 2022-88 and 2022-89. 

 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal of 
the City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  
Done this 19th day of December, 2022. 

 
 
__________________________________________ 
David Goedken, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 







Communication Page 

 

 

Synopsis:  Keith Hagen owns the property at 22102 Highway 151, which is outside the City Limits but 

within the City’s 2-mile extraterritorial jurisdiction. 

Hagen’s property ends at the quarter-section line, but the fence is actually nearly 40 feet north of that 

line. Hagen is purchasing that 40-foot strip from the neighboring land owner, Telleen. This action has 

no impact upon the future growth or development of the City, and provides for a rational lot line that 

follows the existing fence.  The property is shown below: 

Recommendation:  The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed this plat at their meeting of 

December 13, and recommended approval by a vote of 5-0.  Approval of the Resolution is 

recommended. 

Agenda Item: # 10 
Agenda Date: 12/19/2022 

Agenda Items Description:   Approval of Plat of Parcel 2022-87 (Hagen) 

Type of Action Requested: Resolution 

Attachments & Enclosures: 

Plat 

Fiscal Impact: 

Budget Line Item: 

Budget Summary: 

Expenditure: 

Revenue:  

City Council Meeting 

Prep. Date: 12/13/2022  

Preparer: Russell Farnum 



 
 

The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #   
     

Approving Plat of Survey to Parcel 2022-87 
for Property at 22102 Highway 151 

 
WHEREAS, The Plat of Survey to Parcel 2022-87 for property at 22102 Highway 151 
has been presented to the City Council for approval, same being located within the two-
mile jurisdiction of the City limits of the City of Monticello, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Plat was created to add land to the existing lot and moves the lot line 
north nearly 40 feet north to the fence line, which is being purchased from the neighbor, 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Planning and Zoning Board has reviewed the Plat of Survey and 
recommends that it be approved, and 
 
WHEREAS,  The City Council finds that the Plat of Survey for property at 22102 
Highway 151 should be approved. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby approve the Plat of Survey for property at 22102 Highway 151. 

 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal of 
the City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  
Done this 19th day of December, 2022. 

 
 

__________________________________________ 
David Goedken, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 







 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:  At the September 19, 2022 Council meeting, Council directed the Planning and Zoning 
Commission to study and recommend amendments pertaining to building setbacks on corner lots. The 
P&Z Commission has completed that work and recommended approval of the attached (2) ordinances. 
The first amends Chapter 50 of the Municipal Code, Nuisances, to provide consistent setback as 
defined in the Zoning Ordinance. The second ordinance amends Chapter 165 of the Municipal Code, 
Zoning, to clarify multiple issues related to setbacks on corner lots. 
 
Background:  The Zoning Ordinance provides a lack of clarity with how setbacks apply for accessory 
buildings on corner lots. This issue was discussed at length at the September 27 Planning and Zoning 
Commission. Based upon direction from that discussion, Staff prepared the amendments outlined 
below, which the Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed at their meeting on November 15.  
 
In general, this clarifies that the setbacks for accessory buildings on corner lot side yards will be the 
same as those for a principal building. It further corrects the issue of setbacks being measured parallel 
to the principal building, by instead measuring setbacks to the nearest point of the structure. 
 
Analysis:   The changes to both Chapter 165, Zoning Ordinance, and Chapter 50, Nuisance Abatement 
Procedure, are outlined and discussed below (Staff is unclear why setback language is included in the 
Nuisance Abatement chapter, but this amendment will make the language consistent). 
 
Please note than language proposed to be added is in italics and underlined. Language proposed to be 
deleted is shown in strikethrough. Discussion of each change is also provided.  
  

Agenda Item: # 11-12 
Agenda Date: 12/19/2022 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Municipal Code Amendments pertaining to setbacks on corner lots 

Type of Action Requested: Ordinances (2) 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 
Ordinances (2) 
Background 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 12/13/2022 
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



 
 

Chapter 165, Zoning Ordinance: 
 
In “Definitions”, we would add a definition for “Setback”, referring the reader to “Yard”. This will 
help people find the information they are looking for in regard to building setbacks. 
 
Also in Definitions, we would add a definition for the Corner Lot Side Yard. Additional definitions 
related to yards would be amended as outlined below: 
 
   101.   "Yard" means an open space between the closest point of a building and the 
adjoining lot lines.  See Figure 4. 
 
 This clarifies that setbacks are measured to the closest point, combined with the change to 

Chapter 50, reinforces that setbacks are not measured parallel to the building, but rather 
parallel to the lot lines 
 

   102.   "Yard, front" means the area extending across the full width of the lot and measured 
between the front lot line and the building foundation not to include covered steps of wood or 
concrete.  See Figure 4.  
 
 Steps are allowed to project into the setback, this language is irrelevant 

 
   103.   "Yard, rear" means the area extending across the rear of a lot and being the required 
minimum horizontal distance between the rear lot line and rear of the main principal building 
or any projections thereof other than the projections of uncovered steps, unenclosed 
balconies, or unenclosed porches.  See Figure 4. 
 
 The code should consistently refer to the principal building. This clarifies the language, and 

also deletes (again) the irrelevant language regarding stairs and porches. The highlighted 
language regarding “projections” should be deleted, as most are allowed to protrude into the 
rear yard setback (Chimneys, overhangs, etc.. 

 
   104.   "Yard, side" means the area between the building foundation and the side line of the 
lot, and extending from the required front yard to the required rear yard.  A building overhang 
may not project more than two feet into the side yard.  See Figure 4 below. 
 
After these Definitions, add: 
 “Yard, side, corner lot” means the area between the building foundation and the corner 
lot side line of the lot, located along the street frontage on a corner lot that does not serve as 
the front yard.  A building overhang may not project more than two feet into the Corner Lot 
Side Yard. See Figure 4a, below. 
 
 (Also add Figure 4a, diagramming setbacks on a corner lot) 
 
 This change adds a Corner Lot Side Yard definition. Also, because the existing setback 

diagram does not include a corner lot, we would add one. A draft one is included in the 
Ordinance. 

  



 
 
  Figure 4 (existing)     Figure 4a (added) 
 
In Chapter 165.13, pertaining to Accessory Structures, the following two changes are recommended: 
 
   3.   Restrictions on Front Yard and Corner Lot Side Yard.  Accessory structures in the front 
yard and/or Corner Lot Side Yard are limited to driveways, sidewalks, patios, planting 
beds/boxes, or similar features not exceeding thirty inches in height, except fences in 
accordance with 165.23, handrails, or mailboxes installed in accordance with U.S. Postal 
Service regulations.  For those lots/parcels located in subdivisions, additions, or plats 
approved before June 24, 1996, a covered or uncovered porch or deck may be allowed to 
exist within the setback area so long as it remains at least 12 feet away from the right-of-way, 
does not extend into the side yard, and is not wider than the width of the front foundation of 
the home.  If the proposed porch or deck meets those criteria, a permit may be issued for the 
construction thereof. 

 This addition of Corner Lot Side Yard into this paragraph clarifies that accessory structures 
like garages would have to follow the same setback as a principal structure on both street sides 
of the principal structure. 

 
   5.   Location on Lot.  No accessory building or structure shall be erected in any front or 
corner lot side yard unless compliant with 3, above.  If an accessory building or structure is 
erected in a side yard, it must be erected in such a fashion that it meets all setbacks as if it 
were attached to the primary structure. 
 
 This addition of Corner Lot Side Yard into this paragraph clarifies that accessory structures 

like garages would have to follow the same setback as a principal structure on both street sides 
of a corner lot. 

 
Lastly, in the Bulk Chart, one of the columns has a typo that needs to be fixed as part of this 
amendment (it says Minimum Side Street Corner Lot, and should say Minimum Side Yard, Corner 
Lot). 
  



 
 

Chapter 50, Nuisance Abatement Procedure 
 
   4.   "Side yard corner lots" means the yard area adjacent to the street right-of-way on a 
corner lot extending from the nearest point of the principal building, from the front yard along 
the side of the structure to the rear property line. 

 
In regard to prior discussion about getting better information on building permit applications, the Staff 
have amended the permit application form to include language requiring a dimensioned site plan. This 
is the best approach at this time, as there is not much language in the Zoning Ordinance pertaining to 
building permits, other than a permit is required. Reworking that section of the Zoning Ordinance 
would be an extensive project that should be considered at a later date. 
 
Recommendation:  The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of these language 
changes by a vote of 4-0. Approval of the second reading on the two Ordinances is recommended. 
 
 
 



757





























 
ORDINANCE NO. 758   

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 

 CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA, BY AMENDING PROVISIONS 
 PERTAINING TO “NUISANCE ABATEMENT PROCEDURE” 

 
 
BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Monticello, Iowa: 
 
SECTION 1.  SECTION MODIFIED. Section 50.01 (4) of the Code of Ordinances of the City 
of Monticello, Iowa, is repealed and the following adopted in lieu there: 
 

   4.   "Side yard corner lots" means the yard area adjacent to the street right-of-
way on a corner lot extending from the nearest point of the principal building, 
from the front yard to the rear property line. 

 
SECTION 2.  SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance 
shall be adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 3.  WHEN EFFECTIVE.  This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law. 
 
Passed and approved by the City Council in session this ______  day of December 2022. 
 
 
     _____________________________ 
     David Goedken, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 
First Reading: _______________, 2022 
Second Reading: _____________, 2022 
Third Reading: _______________, 2022 
 
 
I certify that the foregoing document was published as Ordinance No.______ on the ___ of 
December, 2022. 
 
________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: # 13-20 
Agenda Date: 12/19/2022 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Reports 

Type of Action Requested:  Motion; Resolution; Ordinance; Reports; Public Hearing; Closed Session 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

  
  
   
 

  

  

 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 12/13/2022 
Preparer: Sally Hinrichsen 
 


	A 01 a December 19, 2022 agenda
	B 01 a 12.05.2022 Council minutes
	B 02 a December 15 2022 Payroll
	Sheet1

	B 03 a CLAIMS REPORT 12.20.2022
	B 04 a Treasurers Report
	C 01 a Communication Page Sewer Plant Public Hearing
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 1 & 2
	Agenda Date: 12/19/2022

	C 01 a NOTICE OF PROPOSED ACTION TO INSTITUTE PROCEEDINGS
	C 02 a Hrg Only Sewer Rev LA (Monticello #33 2022)-v3
	D 01 a Communication Page Airport CIP
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 3
	Agenda Date: 12/19/2022

	D 01 b 2022-      Airport CIP (Five.Year.Plan)
	D 01 c MXO FY 23-27 CIP Draft 12-5-2022 for Airport Board review
	D 02 a Communication Page Airport Farm Leases
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 4 & 5
	Agenda Date: 12/19/2022

	D 02 b 2022 -        Airport(Farm.Lease.Approval)12.19.2022
	D 03 b 2022 -        Airport(Farm.Lease.Approval.Nagel)12.19.2022
	D 04 a Communication Page USDA.Fire.ATV
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 6
	Agenda Date: 12/19/2022

	D 04 b 2022 USDA.FireATV(Grant.App)
	D 05 a Communication Page Library Director
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 7
	Agenda Date: 12/19/2022

	D 05 b 2022-      Library.Director.Staff.(Wage.)
	D 06 a Communication Page Welter Sub
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 1
	Agenda Date: 12/19/2022

	D 06 b 2022-     Resolution(Plat.Survey.2022.85.Welter.Oak Street)
	D 06 c welter oak street 2022 plat  legal
	D 06 d WELTER OAK STREET SITE PHOTO
	D 07 a Communication Page Four H Subdivision
	D 07 b 2022-     Resolution(Plat.Survey.2022.85.Welter.Oak Street)
	D 07 c Four-H Properties-Plat of Parcels 2022-88 and 89
	D 08 a Communication Page Hagen Plat
	D 08 b 2022-      Resolution(Plat.Survey.22102 Highway 151.Hagen )
	D 08 c hagen keith 2022 boundary correction final plat and legal
	F 01 a Communication Page Municipal Code Amendments Setbacks
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 11-12
	Agenda Date: 12/19/2022

	F 01 b 757 zoning ord
	F 02 b 758 ORD Chapter 50 amendment corner lot setbacks
	G 01 a Communication Reports
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 13-20
	Agenda Date: 12/19/2022




